



21 Propositions for City Charter Amendments
Election Day is Tuesday, November 3, 2020

Early Voting:

Tuesday, October 13 – Friday October 16, 2020 – 8 a.m. to 5 p.m.

Monday, October 19 – Friday October 23, 2020 – 8 a.m. to 5 p.m.

Saturday, October 24 – 7 a.m. to 7 p.m.

Sunday, October 25 – 1 p.m. – 6 p.m.

Monday, October 26 – Friday October 30, 2020 – 7 a.m. to 7 p.m.

What is a City Charter?

A City Charter is like the Constitution of the United States. It is the outline of how the City Government is to govern and operate; it can only be changed by a majority of those qualified voters voting in an election specifically stating the changes of the City Charter.

What is a City Charter Amendment Election?

It is a Special Election to consider revisions or changes to the City Charter.

How were the City Charter Amendments selected?

In compliance with the City Charter, City Council appointed five individuals of mixed demographics to represent the population of Dickinson to serve on the Charter Review Commission. The City Attorney's office sent an expert in city charters and Texas State laws with respect to city charters, to work with and advise the City Charter Review Commission.

The Dickinson City Commission on October 22, 2019, created a City Charter Review Commission to review the City Charter for the City of Dickinson. The original Charter was created in 1987 and amended in 2001. On May 2, 2020, the citizens of Dickinson will have an opportunity to vote on 21 amendments to the City Charter.

Charter Amendment Propositions

The entire City Charter was reviewed and the consultant and members of the commission raised questions, concerns, etc. about the City Charter and discussed how each issue raised should be handled and worded. The City Charter Review Commission met in posted meetings open to the public. Once the wording and intent of various changes were decided and agreed upon by the City Charter Review Commission, the amendments were recommended to the City Council. The Council reviewed the changes and discussed the items in a Public Meeting held on February 4 and February 11, 2020. The City Council then considered revisions, additions, or deletions to the recommendations and chose to accept amendments as agreed upon.

Residents are encouraged to review the items in advance and educate themselves on the propositions before early voting begins.

Who are the members of the City Charter Review Committee?

Ivan Langford, Chairman

Debra Fortner

Johnnie Simpson

Scott Shrader

Bruce Henderson

Legal Advisor, Attorney Scott Bounds

Charter Amendment Propositions

Note: An underline notates an addition, a strikethrough notates a deletion.

PROPOSITION A

Shall the Charter be amended to adopt the Council-Manager form of government?

TEXT AMENDMENT – FOR PROPOSITION “A” (Council Manager Form of Government)

1.02 - Form of government.

The municipal government provided by this charter shall be known as the ~~m~~~~ayor~~-~~c~~~~ouncil~~-~~m~~~~anager~~ form of government. Pursuant to the provisions and subject only to the limitations imposed by the constitution and the laws of the State of Texas and by this charter, all powers of the city shall be vested in ~~and exercised by~~ an elective city council, which shall enact local legislation, adopt budgets, determine policies, and appoint the city manager, who shall execute the laws and administer the government of the city. All powers of the city shall be exercised in the manner prescribed by this charter, or if the manner be not prescribed, then in such manner as may be prescribed by ordinance or state law.

2.01 - General.

The city shall be an incorporated home rule city with full powers and rights of self-government, as provided in or not prohibited by the constitution, statutes, laws of the State of Texas, or this charter, as presently in existence or hereafter amended. By way of example, but not by way of limitation, the city shall specifically have the powers described in other sections of this charter and as described below:

- a. To adopt, enact, establish and enforce codes, licenses, ~~and~~ ordinances, policies, and resolutions for the maintenance of good government and the interest and well-being of its inhabitants.

3.04 – Presiding officer; ~~M~~~~ayor~~ and mayor pro tem.

- a. The mayor shall be recognized as the ~~official~~-head of the city government for all ceremonial purposes and by the governor for purposes of military law, but shall have no regular administrative duties such as ordinances, resolutions, conveyances, grant agreements, official plats, contracts, and bonds.

Charter Amendment Propositions

- b. ~~The mayor shall have the power to see that all state laws and city laws are effectively enforced, prepare and recommend to [the] city council the annual budget, and perform such other duties as may be required by [the] city council, as specified in this charter, or as required by State law.~~

3.06 - Powers of the city council.

~~All powers and authority which are conferred on or possessed by the city the determination of all matters of policy shall be vested in and exercised by [the] city council; provided that [the] city council shall have no power to exercise those powers which are expressly conferred on other city officers by this charter. Without limitation of the foregoing, and among the other powers that may be exercised by the council, the following are here [sic] enumerated for greater certainty:~~

- a. ~~Establish, consolidate, or abolish administrative departments and distribute the work of divisions~~ Appoint and remove the city manager; ...

3.07 - Prohibitions.

- a. Except where authorized by law or by this charter, no mayor or councilmember shall hold any other city office or city employment during ~~his~~ the person's term as mayor or councilmember. No former mayor or councilmember shall hold any compensated appointive office or city employment within one (1) year after the expiration of ~~his~~ the person's term as mayor or councilmember.
- b. Except for the purpose of inquiries and investigations authorized by [the] city council, ~~the individual members of the city councilmembers~~ shall deal with the administrative service solely through the city manager and neither the council nor any member of the council shall not give orders to any city officer or employee subordinates of the city manager either publicly or privately, nor interrupt the normal working schedule of such employees.
- c. Neither the council nor any of its members shall direct the appointment of any person to, or any person's removal from, office by the city manager or by any of the city manager's subordinates; provided, however, that the appointment of city secretary and chief of police shall be subject to the approval of the city council.

Charter Amendment Propositions

3.08 - Meetings of the city council.

- a. [The] city council shall hold at least one (1) regular meeting each month and as many additional meetings as it deems necessary to transact the business of the city. [The] city council shall fix by ordinance the date and time of the regular meetings. Special meetings of [the] city council shall be held at the call of the mayor, the city manager, or ~~a majority of the~~ three (3) councilmembers upon provision of public notice in accordance with state law. All meetings shall be open to the public and shall be held and notice given in accordance with state law as now or hereafter amended, except where executive sessions are authorized by state law.
- e. The agenda for the meetings of city council shall be prepared by the ~~mayor~~ city manager, ~~with input from the mayor~~, and posted by the city secretary in the manner required by state law. Any ~~councilmember~~ member of council may request that an item be placed on the agenda by request to the city manager or council at an open meeting; however, the mayor is not obligated to comply unless such request is timely submitted in writing and signed by three (3) councilmembers. ~~The item shall then be included on the next appropriate agenda.~~

4.01 - City ~~administrator~~ manager.

- a. The city council shall hire and appoint the city ~~administrator~~ manager who shall serve as the chief ~~administrative~~ executive officer and head of the administrative branch of city government. The city manager of the city shall serve at the pleasure of the city council. ~~He~~ The city manager need not be a resident of the city when appointed and may reside outside the city only with the approval of the city council.
- b. [The] city council shall fix the compensation of the city ~~administrator~~ manager.
- c. The city ~~administrator~~ manager shall be appointed for an indefinite term, and may be removed by the affirmative vote of four (4) ~~councilmembers~~ of the council. The action of [the] city council in removing the city ~~administrator~~ manager shall be final. [The] city council shall appoint an acting city ~~administrator~~ manager during all vacancies of said office.

Charter Amendment Propositions

- d. ~~[The] city manager shall be responsible to the city council may delegate to and confer upon the city administrator those powers and duties as in their judgement may be proper for the proper and efficient administration of all city affairs. The city administrator shall be responsible to the mayor and city council in the performance of such duties and to that end the city manager shall have the power and shall be required to:~~
- appoint and employ and, when necessary for the good of the service, remove all officers and employees of the city except as otherwise provided by this charter and except as the city manager may authorize the head of a department to appoint and remove subordinates in such department;
 - prepare the budget annually and submit it to the council and be responsible for its administration after adoption;
 - enforce the charter and ordinances;
 - control work of all department created by the charter and ordinances;
 - attend council meetings;
 - keep the council advised as to the financial condition of city, and to prepare and report to the council as of the end of the fiscal year a complete report on the finances and administrative activities of the city for the preceding year;
 - execute documents as executive of city;
 - appoint assistants and delegate powers to them;
 - administer the city's pension and benefits programs;
 - conduct investigations as deemed necessary, or as directed by council; and
 - perform such other duties assigned by council not inconsistent with this charter.

Charter Amendment Propositions

4.02 - City secretary.

- a. The ~~mayer~~ city manager shall appoint, subject to the approval of [the] city council, a city secretary, who shall be appointed for an indefinite term, and may be removed by the city manager only with approval ~~action~~ of [the] city council. ~~[The] city council shall fix the compensation of the city secretary.~~ ...

4.03 - Municipal court.

...

- e. The city manager shall appoint the clerk and deputy clerks of the municipal court who shall have the power to administer oaths, affidavits, make certificates, affix the seal of the municipal court, and perform all acts usual and necessary by the clerks of said court, in conducting the business thereof, including but not limited to, the keeping of records and accounts of the municipal court. ...

4.04 - City attorney.

...

- b. The city attorney shall serve as the legal advisor to the ~~mayer and~~ city council and city manager; represent the city's interests in litigation and legal proceedings as directed by the city council and city manager; review and provide opinions as requested by the ~~mayer or~~ city council or city manager on contracts, legal instruments, ordinances of the city and other items of city business. ...

4.05 - Department of police.

A department of police shall be established and maintained to preserve order within the city and to secure the residents of said city from violence and the property therein from injury or loss.

- a. The chief of police shall be the chief administrative officer of the department of police and shall be appointed by the ~~mayer~~ city manager with the approval of [the] city council, for an indefinite term, and may be removed by the city manager with the approval of ~~the affirmative vote of four~~

Charter Amendment Propositions

~~(4) council members.~~ The chief of police shall be responsible to the city ~~administrator~~ manager, and with the approval of the city ~~administrator~~ manager shall appoint and remove the employees of said department. ~~The chief of police may be removed from office only by action of [the] city council.~~

~~b. [The] city council shall fix the compensation of the chief of police.~~

~~eb.~~ No persons, except as otherwise provided by the laws of the State of Texas, shall act as special police within the city.

4.07 - Administrative departments and offices.

a. [The] city manager with approval of the council may, ~~after hearing recommendations of the city administrator,~~ establish, redesignate or combine departments and offices.

~~b. Except as provided elsewhere in this charter, all departments, offices and agencies of the city shall be under the direction and supervision of the city administrator manager. With the consent of [the] city council, the city administrator may serve as the head of one (1) or more city departments or offices, or appoint one (1) person as the head of two (2) or more departments.~~

4.08 - Personnel system.

Personnel rules shall be prepared by the city ~~administrator~~ manager and presented to [the] city council, which may adopt such rules by ordinance, with or without amendment. The adopted rules shall establish the city as an equal opportunity employer and shall govern the equitable administration of the personnel system of the city.

7.14 - Purchasing.

a. The city council may, by ordinance, give the city ~~administrator~~ manager authority to contract for expenditures without further approval of [the] city council for all budgeted items not exceeding limits set by [the] city council. ... The city council, or city ~~administrator~~ manager in such cases as ~~he~~ the city manager is authorized to contract for the city, shall have the right to reject any and all bids.

Charter Amendment Propositions

- b. Emergency contracts as authorized by law and this charter may be negotiated by the city council or city ~~administrator~~ manager if given authority by [the] city council, without competitive bidding. Such emergency shall be declared by the mayor and approved by [the] city council, or may be declared by [the] city council.

7.15 - Administration of budget.

- a. No payment shall be made or obligation incurred against any allotment or appropriation except in accordance with appropriations duly made unless the city ~~administrator~~ manager or ~~his~~ the city manager's designee first certifies that there is a sufficient unencumbered balance in such allotment or appropriation and that sufficient funds therefrom are or will be available to cover the claim or meet the obligation when it becomes due and payable. ...
- d. The city ~~administrator~~ manager shall submit a monthly report to [the] city council covering the revenues and expenditures of the city in such form as requested by [the] city council.

PROPOSITION B

Shall the Charter be amended to provide Council the power to provide for approval of subdivision plats and to carry out plans for areas destroyed by disaster?

2.02 - Public improvements.

The city shall have the power to construct and maintain, within or without its corporate limits, streets, flood control facilities; and sanitation, water, and storm drainage facilities; in, over, under or upon all public property or easements granted for that purpose. The city shall also have the power by ordinance to levy assessments for the cost of such improvements and to cause liens to be established, as provided by law, for the purpose of securing the payment of such levies and shall have the power to enforce and require the use of such improvements.

Charter Amendment Propositions

3.04 – **Presiding officer; ~~M~~Mayor and mayor pro tem.**

- a. ... ~~The mayor~~ He shall be the presiding officer of the city council with the right to vote on all matters but shall vote only in the case of a tie vote. He shall have the power to veto legislation of city council within three (3) days after passage thereof, but the veto may be overridden by an affirmative vote of four (4) councilmembers at a regular or special meeting occurring within thirty (30) days of the veto. When authorized by [the] city council, the mayor shall sign all official documents, such as ordinances, resolutions, conveyances, grant agreements, official plats, contracts, and bonds.

3.06 - **Powers of the city council.**

~~All powers and authority which are conferred on or possessed by the city~~ the determination of all matters of policy shall be vested in and exercised by [the] city council; provided that [the] city council shall have no power to exercise those powers which are expressly conferred on other city officers by this charter. Without limitation of the foregoing, and among the other powers that may be exercised by the council, the following are here [sic] enumerated for greater certainty:

- f. ~~Adopt~~ Approve or provide for the approval of subdivision plats;
- q. ~~Authorize the issuance of bonds by a bond ordinance; and~~
- r. ~~Adopt, modify and carry out plans for the replanning, improvement and redevelopment of neighborhoods and for the replanning, reconstruction or redevelopment of any area or district that may have been destroyed in whole or in part by disaster.~~

PROPOSITION C

Shall the Charter be amended to require a person to be a resident of the city for at least twelve months immediately preceding their election to the City Council?

3.02 - **Qualifications of members.**

Each member of city council shall be a resident of the city, shall be at least twenty-one (21) years of age, shall be a qualified voter, shall have been a resident citizen of the city for a period of at least ~~six (6)~~ twelve (12) months immediately preceding his the election, ~~and shall not be indebted to the city, with the exception of indebtedness being contested in accordance with the law.~~ Failure of a member of the city council to maintain the residency requirement shall result in such office being automatically vacated.

Charter Amendment Propositions

PROPOSITION D

Shall the Charter be amended to permit the City Council to appoint a person to fill a vacant Councilmember position within one year of a regular election?

3.05 - Vacancies.

...

- e. If a vacancy occurs on city council such vacancy shall be filled, for the remainder of the unexpired term, at a special election held for such purpose. Such election shall be called within one hundred twenty (120) days after such vacancy or vacancies occur. If the remainder of the unexpired term of the vacated office is twelve (12) months or less, then the council is authorized to fill the unexpired term by appointment if the appointment is made within thirty (30) days of the vacancy.

PROPOSITION E

Shall the Charter be amended to permit publication of ordinances, notices and other matters as permitted by State law?

12.03 - Official newspaper.

[The] city council shall declare annually an official newspaper of general circulation in the city. All ordinances, notices, and other matters required by this charter, city ordinance, or the constitution and laws of the State of Texas shall be published in the official newspaper or as otherwise permitted by state law.

PROPOSITION F

Shall the Charter be amended to require an amendment relating to the administration of the City's finances including requiring earlier submission of budget and publication of the budget as permitted by state law?

7.02 - Submission of budget.

On or before the first day of the ~~eleventh~~ tenth month of the fiscal year, the ~~mayor~~ city manager shall submit a budget to [the] city council for the ensuing fiscal year with an accompanying message.

7.04 - Public hearing on budget.

Prior to adoption of the budget, [the] city council shall call a public hearing and have the hour, date, and place published in the official newspaper ~~and posted in three (3) different places as designated by [the] city council~~ or as otherwise provided by state law.

Charter Amendment Propositions

PROPOSITION G

Shall the Charter be amended to increase the amount of the City's disaster contingency fund?

7.07 - Disaster contingency fund.

There is established a disaster contingency fund which shall not ~~exceed~~ ~~be less than seven~~ (7) percent of the total current annual budget. Excesses occurring in this fund are to be transferred to the general fund at the end of the current fiscal year. This fund shall be used only in the event of disaster as declared by the mayor. The annual budget may provide for appropriations to this fund not to exceed two (2) percent of the total current budget. This fund shall be carried forward from year to year and shall not be considered an unencumbered fund balance as referred to in 7.06. Expenditures from this fund shall be approved by the city council.

PROPOSITION H

Shall the Charter be amended to provide for the contract and purchase of goods and services consistent with state procurement laws?

7.14 - Purchasing.

- a. All contracts for expenditures involving more than the limits set by the city council shall be let ~~to the lowest bidder whose submittal is most responsive and most advantageous to the needs of the city.~~ in accordance with the provisions of state law. There must be an opportunity for competitive bidding as provided by law or ordinance.

PROPOSITION I

Shall the Charter be amended to allow the appointment of Councilmembers to serve on boards, commissions and committees where permitted by State law?

8.01 - Authority, composition and procedures.

- a. In addition to a planning and zoning commission, [the] city council shall create, establish or appoint, as may be required by the laws of the State of Texas or this charter, such boards, commissions, and committees as it deems necessary or desirable to carry out the function, duties, accountability and tenure of each board, commission, and committee where such are not prescribed by law or this charter.
....

Charter Amendment Propositions

- d. Members of [the] city council shall not be appointed to any board, commission, or committee created or established by [the] city council other than in an advisory capacity, except as permitted by state law. This does not preclude subcommittees made up entirely of city council members.

PROPOSITION J

Shall the Charter be amended to prohibit any City officer or employee from participating in any vote or decision in which the person has a personal interest?

12.15 - Personal interest in city contract.

~~No officer or employee of the city shall have a financial interest, direct or indirect, in any contract with the city, or shall be financially interested, directly or indirectly, in the sale by the city of any land, materials, supplies, or service, except on behalf of the city as an officer or employee. Any willful violation of this section shall constitute malfeasance in office, and any officer or employee guilty thereof shall be subject to removal from his office or position. Any violation of this section, with the knowledge, expressed or implied, of the person or corporation contracting with [the] city council shall render the contract involved voidable by [the] city council.~~ participate in a vote or decision on any matter involving a business entity or real property in which the official or employee has a substantial interest as provided by state law.

PROPOSITION K

Shall the Charter be amended to require the periodic review of the Charter by a Council appointed Charter Commission?

12.18 - Charter review commission.

~~At least every ten (10) years, the city council may shall~~ appoint a charter review commission of five (5) citizens of the city.

Charter Amendment Propositions

PROPOSITION L

Shall the Charter be amended to permit the publication of the report of the Charter Review Commission on the City's website?

12.18 - Charter review commission.

...

- b. [The] city council shall receive any report and have published in a newspaper of general circulation in the city or on the City's website a summary of all proposed amendments recommended by the final report of the charter review commission. ...

PROPOSITION M

Shall the Charter be amended to provide for gender neutral terminology and to correct other terms, spelling and capitalization without making any substantive changes?

1.06 - Definitions.

[The following definitions shall apply in this charter:]

City —The City of Dickinson.

City council —The mayor and councilmembers acting as a group.

Councilmembers —Persons elected to the city council other than the mayor.

~~*Officers* —City councilmembers, elected city officials, and city department heads.~~

Qualified voters —Residents of the city, properly registered to vote, in accordance with the Texas Election Code.

3.06 Powers of the City Council.

- h. Adopt and modify and carry out plans in cooperation with the planning and zoning commission for the replanning, improvement, and redevelopment of specific areas of the city;
- i. Adopt and modify and carry out plans in cooperation with the planning and zoning commission for the replanning, reconstruction or redevelopment of any area or district which may have been destroyed in whole or in part by disaster; ...
- m. ~~Shall have the power to~~ License and regulate any business, occupation, profession or trade when authorized by state law; ...

Charter Amendment Propositions

- o. ~~Shall e~~ Conduct all business in official meetings held and called pursuant to the provisions of the charter and applicable laws of the State of Texas. Individual members of [the] city council shall have power to act for the city only with specific authorization by [the] city council in an official meeting; ~~and...~~
- p. ~~Shall a~~ Appoint a city tax collector or contract for the collection of city property taxes consistent with the laws of the State of Texas; ...

3.05 - Vacancies.

- a. The office of the mayor or councilmember shall become vacant upon ~~his~~ the person's death, resignation, forfeiture of, disqualification, or removal from office by any manner authorized by law.
- b. If any member of [the] city council is absent from three (3) regular meetings within a six-month period, without explanation acceptable to a majority of the remaining ~~councilmembers of council,~~ his the person's office shall be declared vacant at the next regular meeting of [the] city council.
- c. Any member of [the] city council who ceases to maintain the required qualifications for office (as delineated in 3.02), or who is convicted of a felony or a misdemeanor involving moral turpitude or who is convicted of violating a state law concerning conflict of interest, shall forfeit ~~his~~ the member's office. Every forfeiture shall be declared and enforced by a majority vote of [the] city council.
- d. In the event of a vacancy in the office of the mayor, the mayor pro tem shall become the mayor, thereby vacating ~~his~~ the mayor pro tem's ~~city councilmember~~ position.

5.03 - Filing for office.

Any qualified citizen who desires to become a candidate for city office shall file an application with the city secretary ~~for his name~~ to appear on the ballot. Candidate qualifications are outlined in 3.02 and prohibitions in 3.07. Nothing other than the candidate's name shall appear on the ballot, except as provided by state law.

Charter Amendment Propositions

6.03 - Circulation and form of petitions.

...

- b. All pages of a petition shall be uniform in size and style and shall be assembled as one (1) instrument for filing. Each signer of a petition must be a registered voter of the city and shall write after his name his address, giving name of street and number, ~~his~~ the person's voter registration number, and shall also write thereon the date ~~his~~ the person's signature was affixed. Petitions shall contain or have attached throughout their circulation the full text of the ordinance proposed or sought to be reconsidered, or in the case of recall petition, a statement which distinctly and specifically states the ground(s) upon which such petition for removal is predicated. If there be more than one (1) ground, the statement shall specifically state each ground with such certainty as to give the officer(s) sought to be removed notice of such matters with which ~~he~~ the officer is charged.
- c. Each page of the petition shall have attached to it, when filed, an affidavit executed by the circulator stating that ~~he~~ the circulator personally circulated the paper, the number of signatures thereon, that all the signatures were affixed in ~~his~~ the circulator's presence, that ~~he~~ the circulator believes them to be genuine signatures of the persons whose names they purport to be, and that each signer had an opportunity before signing to read the full text of the ordinance proposed, or sought to be reconsidered, or the identity of the official whose recall is being sought.

6.07 - Public hearing on recall of elected officers.

- a. An elected official whose removal is sought by recall may, within five (5) days after such recall petition has been presented to [the] city council, request that a public hearing be held to permit ~~him~~ such officer to present facts pertinent to the charges specified in the petition. Should a request be made, [the] city council shall order a public hearing be held not less than seven (7) days nor more than fifteen (15) days after receiving such request for a public hearing. ...

6.09 - Calling of recall election.

If the officer whose removal is sought does not resign, [the] city council shall order an election and set the date for holding such recall election. The date selected for the recall election shall be the earliest date

Charter Amendment Propositions

permitted by Texas election laws, but not earlier than thirty (30) days after the date the petition was presented to [the] city council, or from the date of the public hearing, if one was held. If, after the recall election date is established, the officer vacates ~~his~~ the position, the election shall be cancelled.

8.01 - Authority, composition and procedures.

- a. In addition to a planning and zoning commission, [the] city council shall create, establish or appoint, as may be required by the laws of the State of Texas or this charter, such boards, commissions, and committees as it deems necessary or desirable to carry out the function, duties, accountability and tenure of each board, commission, and committee where such are not prescribed by law or this charter.

9.02 - Planning and zoning commission.

At the direction of the city council, the planning and zoning commission shall have duties and powers as follows:

- (1) To investigate, consider, and recommend to the city council, prior to approval of same, all plats of new subdivisions within the city or its extraterritorial jurisdiction and to perform all duties imposed upon city planning and zoning commissions by the statutes of the state;
- (2) Make reports and recommendations relating to the comprehensive community plan and development of the city; and
- (3) Such other duties as may be delegated from time to time to the planning and zoning commission by the city council.

12.18 Charter Review Commission.

- a. It shall be the duty of such charter review commission to:

...

- (4) Report its findings and present its proposed amendments, if any, to [the] city council. Any report of the charter review commission shall be delivered to the city attorney at least thirty (30) days prior to its

Charter Amendment Propositions

presentation to [the] city council. Within such time, and no later than ten (10) days prior to its presentation to [the] city council, the city attorney shall advise the charter review commission in writing, of any changes in proposed amendments which ~~he~~ the city attorney deems necessary or desirable. A copy of the city attorney's recommendations shall be attached to the report of the charter review commission at the time of its presentation to [the] city council.

PROPOSITION N

Shall the Charter be amended to conform to the general laws of the State of Texas?

1.05 - Disannexation.

[The] city council, after a public hearing and an affirmative vote of five (5) members of councilmembers, may by ordinance disannex any property lying within the boundary limits of the city, and lying adjacent to the city limits, and subject to the procedural rules prescribed by state law.

3.11 - Authentication, recording, printing and distribution.

- a. All ordinances and resolutions adopted by [the] city council shall be authenticated by [the] seal and signature of the city secretary and numbered consecutively as adopted. They shall be properly indexed and placed in a book kept open for public inspection or as otherwise provided by state law.
- b. [The] city council shall cause all ordinances and amendments to this charter to be printed promptly following their adoption. A copy of each ordinance and amendment shall be placed in appropriate city offices for public reference. Printed ordinances and charter amendments shall be made available for purchase by the public at a reasonable price fixed by [the] city council.

3.13 - Bonds required.

[The] city council shall require bonds of all municipal officers and employees who receive or pay out any monies of the city as required by state law. The amount of the bonds shall be determined by the city council and the cost shall be borne by the city.

Charter Amendment Propositions

PROPOSITION O

Shall the Charter be amended to permit Council to renumber and rearrange the sections of the Charter by ordinance?

12.19. - Rearrangement and Renumbering.

The city council shall have the power, by ordinance, to renumber and rearrange all articles, sections, subsections, paragraphs, and subparagraphs of this Charter or any amendments thereto, as it shall deem appropriate.

PROPOSITION P

Shall the Charter be amended to prohibit a former Mayor or Councilmember from holding any compensated appointive office or city employment within five (5) years after the expiration of the term?

3.07. - Prohibitions.

- a. Except where authorized by law or by this charter, no mayor or councilmember shall hold any other city office or city employment during his term as mayor or councilmember. No former mayor or councilmember shall hold any compensated appointive office or city employment within ~~one five~~ (15) years after the expiration of his term as mayor or councilmember.

PROPOSITION Q

Shall the Charter be amended to prohibit an active employee from serving on any City board, commission or committee?

8.01. – Authority, composition and procedures.

...

- e. Active city employees shall not be appointed to any board, commission, or committee created or established by [the] city council other than in an advisory capacity.

Charter Amendment Propositions

PROPOSITION R

Shall the Charter be amended to delete the requirement that the Mayor Pro Tem becomes the Mayor in the event of a vacancy in the office of Mayor?

3.05. - Vacancy.

...

~~d. In the event of a vacancy in the office of the mayor, the mayor pro tem shall become the mayor, thereby vacating his city council position.~~

PROPOSITION S

Shall the Charter be amended to allow for nonbinding referendums?

6.01 - General authority.

...

~~b. Referendum: The qualified voters of the city... or any other ordinance not subject to referendum. The city council shall have the power to call an election for a nonbinding referendum to be held on the same date as an election called by the city.~~

PROPOSITION T

Shall the Charter be amended to limit the terms of office for the Mayor and Councilmembers?

~~a. The legislative and governing body of the city shall consist of a mayor and six (6) councilmembers known as the "city council." The mayor and all councilmembers shall be elected from the city at large, and each councilmember shall occupy a position on the city council, such positions being numbered 1 through 6 consecutively. Any candidate for the office of councilmember shall file an application for a specific position on the city council, such as "Councilmember Position No. 1." The ballot for an election for councilmember shall show each position on city council as a separate office designated by position number.~~

ab. The mayor and each councilmember shall be elected to serve for three-year terms. The three-year terms of office of councilmembers shall be staggered, and the initial election for said offices shall be as follows:

(1) The three council positions to be filled in the 1995 general election shall be known as council position numbers 2, 4, and 6.

(2) The three council positions to be filled in the 1996 general election shall be known as council position numbers 1, 3, and 5.

c. No person may be elected to serve more than three consecutive full or regular three year terms as the mayor or a councilmember, or serve or be appointed or elected to serve more than 10 consecutive years on the city council. Any person appointed or elected as the mayor or a council member may not be appointed or elected to any office on the council within three years of the end of the person's prior service on the city council. Provided, however, any service on the city council prior to June 1, 2013 shall not be considered as prior service.

PROPOSITION U

Shall the Charter be amended to provide for compensation of the Mayor and Councilmembers not to exceed \$75 per meeting or \$1,800 per year, whichever is less?

3.03 - Compensation.

Each member of council shall receive a salary of Seventy-Five Dollars (\$75.00) for each regular meeting that the officer attends; provided, however, such compensation shall not exceed One Thousand Eight Hundred Dollars (\$1,800.00) in any twelve (12) month period. In addition, [M]members of [the] city council shall be entitled to reimbursement for actual expenses incurred in the performance of official duties with the approval of [the] city council at a public meeting. No other compensation shall be allowed.

Election Day is Tuesday, November 3, 2020

Early Voting:

Tuesday, October 13 – Friday October 16, 2020 – 8 a.m. to 5 p.m.

Monday, October 19 – Friday October 23, 2020 – 8 a.m. to 5 p.m.

Saturday, October 24 – 7 a.m. to 7 p.m.

Sunday, October 25 – 1 p.m. – 6 p.m.

Monday, October 26 – Friday October 30, 2020 – 7 a.m. to 7 p.m.



Review and educate yourself about the proposed amendments before voting. More information can be found at www.ci.dickinson.tx.us.